ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
SENATE COMMUNI TY AND REGQ ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
May 9, 2003
1:55 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Chair
Senat or Robin Taylor, Vice Chair
Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Ceor gi anna Li ncoln
Senator Kim El ton

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 209(RLS)
"An Act relating to nunicipal property tax adjustnents for
property affected by a disaster."”

MOVED CSHB 209 (RLS) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON NO. 12
Requesting the Local Boundary Comm ssion to consider borough
i ncorporation for certain unorgani zed areas.

FAI LED TO MOVE OQUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

HB 209 — No previous action to record.
SCR 12 — See CRA minutes dated 5/07/03

W TNESS REG STER

Senator Gary W/ ken

Al aska State Capitol, Room 517
Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor SCR 12

Joneal Hicks

Box 241

Gakona, AK 99586

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 12

Wayne MacMuirray

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- May 9, 2003



Box 952
Sl ana, AK 99586
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 12

Al an LeMast er

Box 222

Gakona, AK 99586

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 12

Charli e Broker
Box 84Tok, AK 99780
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 12

Chri s Marshal
HC 63 Box 131
Tok, AK 99870
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 12

Nai dene Johnson

HC 72 Box 7290

Paxson, AK 99737

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 12

Karen El dri dge

HC 72 Box 7290

Paxson, AK 99737

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 12

Mar vi n Rassnussen

Box 97

Del ta Junction, AK 99737

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 12

Denny Weat hers

Box 1791

Cordova, AK 99574

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 12

Fred Heinz

Box 196

Gakona, AK 99586

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 12

Jane Brown

Box 92

Gakona, AK 99586

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 12

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- May 9, 2003



Betty Boznak

Box 326

Gakona, AK 99586

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 12

Mar k Hei nz

Box 324

Gakona, AK 99586

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SCR 12

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 03-16, SIDE A

CHAIR THOVAS WAGONER called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Committee neeting to order at 1:55 p.m Present
were Senators Gary Stevens, Robin Taylor, and Chair Thonas
Wagoner. Senators Ceorgianna Lincoln and Kim Elton arrived
nmonentarily.

The first order of business was HB 209.

#
HB 209- MUNI . TAX: PROPERTY AFFECTED BY DI SASTER

SENATOR ROBIN TAYLOR announced he reviewed the bill wth
Representative M ke Chenault and he thought it was worthwhile
| egi slation. He nade a notion to nove HB 209 from conmttee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons.

CHAIR THOVMAS WAGONER asked if there was any discussion or
whet her anyone would like to testify.

There being no objection, CSHB 209 (RLS) noved from conmttee
wi t h individual reconmrendations.

#
#SCR 12
SCR 12- BOROUGH | NCORPORATI ON:  UNORG AREAS
SENATOR GARY WLKEN, bill sponsor, supplied the conmttee

menbers with the information that was requested during the
5/7/03 hearing. Mary Jackson distributed REAA wage and
enpl oynent information and a chart outlining PL874 Federal
Impact Ad Dollars. He noted the letter from the Inpact A d

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- May 9, 2003



Program Director that agreed with his assertion that PL874 noney
in the unorgani zed area is not |ocal contribution.

CHAI R WAGONER opened public testinony.

JONEAL HI CKS from Gakona testified on behalf of the Christochina
Tribal Council and its nmenbership in opposition to SCR 12. He
noted 98 percent of those who testified during the previous
hearing were opposed to formation of a borough in the four
proposed areas. They took exception to the data in the LBC
report. They realize they wll eventually becone part of a
borough, but they would like to choose their governnment when the
time comes.

SENATOR GEORG ANNA LINCOLN asked him to send a copy of his
testinmony to the conmttee. She asked how he responds to people
that said they woul d never nmake the decision to forma borough.

MR. HI CKS replied they have been discussing borough formation
for at |least two years and have been working with the economc
devel opnment council in the Copper R ver area. They aren't
avoi di ng borough formation, they’ re sinply noving deliberately.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS asked if he believes they have an
obligation to support the local school district and how they
m ght do that.

MR. HI CKS said at sone point there would be a borough governnent
in the area and it would fund the school.

WAYNE MacMJRRAY testified Slana residents were opposed to the
bill.

ALAN LeMASTER from Gakona thought the report data was inaccurate
and asked how the LBC deternm nes an area could afford to becone
a borough.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked him how this bill would affect tourismin
hi s ar ea.

MR. LeMASTER said it would depend on what happened as a result
of being a borough. He noted tourism in general, is against
targeted taxes.

CHARLIE BROKER from Tok said he agreed wth the previous
testinony. Boroughs would cone in due tine; the residents would

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- May 9, 2003



figure it out. He expressed a preference for Valdez as a borough
headquarters for Tok.

CHRIS MARSHAL from Tok testified there isn't steady enploynent
in the area and therefore, there is no ability to support a
bor ough gover nnent at this tinme. Senat or Li ncol n and
Representative Myrgan represent the area well and a different
organi zation isn't desired. There is no need for another |[evel
of bureaucracy.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS asked if he felt he didn't need to support
the | ocal school system

MR. MARSHAL replied he does support the school system by Iliving
in the community and running a small business that caters to the
tourist trade. Area residents are resource devel opers and they
support the state to a greater degree than urban residents. He
said t'’s true the residents don't have dollars to support the
school, but they support the state and take exception to anyone
that says they don't.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS clarified his question was how do residents
support the school system

MVR. MARSHAL said residents support tourism and nineral
extraction, but they don’'t have dollars to contribute.

SENATOR LI NCOLN explained support to tourism and resource
devel opnent all helps to support the general fund. In addition
they pay through the federal dollars that are allocated to
assist the areas that have federal |and and that noney supports
educati on.

Nai di ne Johnson said she owns a business on the Denali H ghway.
Residents receive no help in maintaining services or even the
road, the econonmy has suffered since Septenber 11 and it’s a bad
time to i npose a borough on area residents.

KAREN ELDRIDGE from Paxson said they don’'t have a school so
there isn't one to support. Few people live in the area and she
can’t understand why anyone woul d consider organizing them into
a borough. Mre noney would be generated if the state sold |and
in the area than if a borough was forned and taxes coll ected.

MARVI N RASSMUSSEN from Delta Junction expressed opposition to

SJR 12. The decision to form a borough should be left to the
people. They contribute to area schools with PL874 nobney and

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- May 9, 2003



PILT funds. He said the state is responsible for education
anyway. The pipeline is already taxed and adding another |ayer
of bureaucracy wouldn’t help anyone. If he wanted to pay taxes
and live with an enornous bureaucracy, he could nove to North
Pol e or Fairbanks.

DENNY KAY WEATHERS from Prince WIliam Sound testified against
the legislation at the previous hearing. She pointed out Al aska
is a diverse state and nothing is equal other than what is
specified in the constitution. She nade the point that the data
used in the LBC report is inaccurate and m sl eadi ng.

FRED HEI NZ from Gakona spoke in opposition to SJR 12. He noted
the LBC report excluded the oil and gas receipts and if they
were to form a borough that data would be inportant. For the
proposed borough in the Copper R ver Basin he heard they get
$6.1 mllion from the pipeline and the school district costs
just $5.1 million to run so there’s plenty of nmoney to run the
school system The constitution framers knew it would take a | ot
of people to support a borough and they sinply don’t have that
popul ation in the Copper River Basin.

JANE BROWN from Gakona said borough incorporation would be
adopted unless the Legislature disapproved the recomendation

within 45 days. The issue of boroughs, both organized and
unorgani zed, is a state constitutional right. If the sponsor
wants to force the issue, then he should do it through the |egal
process of a bill. She took issue with the accuracy of the data

t he LBC used.

BETTY BQZNAK from Gakona said it’s not economcally feasible to
the affected communities. Concerned residents address education
needs by volunteering their tinme and expertise. Oganization
will conme, but forcing the issue deprives residents of the
st eppi ng stone process of devel opi ng gover nnent.

MARK HEINZ from Gakona spoke in opposition to SIJR 12 pointing
out that the state or federal governnment typically supports nost
of the educational needs in any area. The Copper River Basin has
just 3,100 residents and they couldn’t possibly support a |oca
government. There is need for additional industry not nore
gover nnent .

There was no further public testinony.

SENATOR LINCOLN renmarked she was trying to understand how the
sponsor selected the four areas for <closer scrutiny. She

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- May 9, 2003



reviewed the data used in the report and noted those four areas
have hi gh poverty rates, high unenploynent, and |arge nunbers of
adults that are not working. Her constituents always tell her
they want quality education, an inproved econony and the
opportunity to work.

Wth regard to taxing the pipeline nore to fund education, she
asked how long it would be before that burden would becone
probl ematic. Federal noney does conme into those areas to pay for
education, but there will never be the equality of paynent that
the sponsor is trying to achieve until the residents feel they
can form and support a borough.

SENATOR W LKEN suggested the state is better off because 83
percent of the state was placed into nmandatory boroughs in 1961.
He pointed to the 11 standards that a borough nust neet and said
the LBC would go to those four areas and do an analysis to
determ ne whether or not they could support |ocal governnent.
One size certainly doesn't fill all. For instance, the
Delta/ Geeley area has a mne, a mssile defense system a
pi peline, and tourism That is four tax bases and that wealth
shoul d be spread to the Canadian border. Wthout a borough the
people of Delta would hoard that wealth to their benefit. This
effort isn’'t about inposing governnent on anybody; it’s about
figuring out how to help people develop their area so that a
generation from now, they could support governnent and pay their
fair share. People will pay attention to what is happening in
| ocal school s when they support themw th their checkbooks.

SIDE B
2:45 pm

SENATOR LI NCOLN remarked Skagway wants to form a borough, but
their application was denied. She pointed to Denali and North
Sl ope as exanples of areas that successfully formed borough
government when they were ready. The mine at Delta is still in
t he devel opnent stage and this resolution discourages that type
of new econom c devel opnent rather than encouraging it. She
asked again why the four areas were sel ected.

SENATOR W LKEN replied the common thread is they don’t support
their local schools. The other three in the Unorgani zed Borough
have first class cities that are supporting |ocal education.
Eighty four percent of the people in Alaska were put into
boroughs in 1961 and three percent organized voluntarily. He
suggested the mne at Delta will bring the sanme benefits to the
area as Fort Knox has to Fairbanks and Geens Creek has to

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- May 9, 2003



Juneau. Certainly, the mne in Delta couldn’t expect to devel op
those resources and not pay for the services they use and share
that wealth with the people of Delta. If that project hangs by
the thread that they can't pay their fair share, then it
shoul dn’t go forward.

SENATOR ELTON asked if the LBC needed a request from the
Legislature or the communities to go forward with this kind of
st udy.

SENATOR WLKEN said they don't need a request. The LBC is
established in the constitution and stands at arns |length from
the Legislature. No one, including the Legislature, can tell the
LBC to do anything and that’'s why this is in the form of a
resolution rather than statute.

SENATOR ELTON asked and received confirmation that this is only
a suggestion rather than a mandate and the LBC doesn’'t have to
do anything as a result of SJR 12.

He asked if he renenbered correctly that the sponsor brought
this issue before the Senate previously, but it didn't pass the
House.

SENATOR W LKEN said that was correct, previously the issue was
held up in a House conm ttee.

SENATOR ELTON asked if there were things the Legislature could
do to get to the issues identified by the LBC to talk about
i ncentives, which would be the carrot approach rather than the
stick.

SENATOR WLKEN replied the LBC addresses the disincentives to
borough formation in their annual report to the Legislature and
t hey have asked the Legislature to help.

SENATOR ELTON asked if anyone had |ooked to see what the
pipeline offset mght be for the state as those communities
begin to tax pipeline property.

SENATOR WLKEN said there were rough estimates and it’s
currently taxed at $240 million a year. The North Sl ope Borough
takes about $190 mllion and Anchorage, Valdez and Fairbanks
pick up the rest. The $30 million and $35 million that is left
over goes into the general fund. These aren’t huge anobunts of
noney and it may be that other areas of the tax base could be

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- May 9, 2003



used so as to not touch the pipeline. If they touch the
pi peline, they must tax thenselves at the sane rate.

In 1996 the LBC conducted a Delta/Geeley analysis and he
thought it was 3 or $4 nmillion. Standard nunber three asks
whether it is in the best interest of the state to organize so
it would be a Legislative decision as to whether that $3 mllion
should be forfeited from the general fund to provide benefit to
t hat area under the LBC pl an.

CHAIR WAGONER renmarked the overwhelm ng testinony has been
agai nst paying any taxes. Although he hesitates to say everyone
should pay equal taxes, fair is fair, and the question is
whet her residents can, in some way, support the schools.
Currently, schools in those areas are receiving 100 percent
support and contri buting not hi ng.

SENATOR WLKEN replied everyone in the room pays plenty of
taxes, but they receive services in return. The conmon thread is
that all the areas have school systens and everyone wants those
school systens to be funded equally. That’s the goal. The state
requires a 4 ml| paynent before they pay anything toward
education and those wth the ability to pay the 4-mls to
support the schools should do so.

CHAI R WAGONER sai d that’ s based on property val ue.
SENATOR W LKEN agr eed.

SENATOR ELTON referred to the wages spreadsheet and asked if the
data was available to determ ne how nmany of the jobs are held by
residents. That data would be necessary to assess how nmuch stays
in a particular region. For exanple, Juneau benefits from nearby
unor gani zed areas and certainly takes sone of the jobs.

SENATOR W LKEN was sure the information was available, but he
didn't break it down that way. He used the information to show
there was sone wealth creation opportunity in sonme of the areas.
Each person in organized areas paid, on average, $1,090 for
education last year. If everyone in the Unorgani zed Borough was
assessed a 4.5 percent inconme tax, that would anobunt to about
the sanme, but that ignores the question and isn't really
equi t abl e.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS asked whether a borough could be
established with only education powers if that was desired.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 9- May 9, 2003



SENATOR WLKEN replied the Ilowest class borough requires
education, planning, and zoni ng powers.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS asked him to go through the procedure
that’s expected with regard to the study.

SENATOR W LKEN said the LBC would identify an area, go to the
area and refine the data that was begun in the February 2003
report. An area would have to qualify in each one of the eleven
standards and if an area failed, it wouldn't becone a borough at
that tine. The state mght then ook to see howit could help an
area address the areas of failure so governnent would be
possi ble at sone tinme in the future.

SENATOR ELTON thought the easiest way to do this would be to
call the LBC and ask themto do it rather than going through the
Legislature. He asked if the LBC was reluctant to act wthout
instruction fromthe Legislature.

SENATOR W LKEN said if he were a nenber of the LBC, he would
want to know, beforehand, whether or not the final arbiter was
going to reject the work.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS asked if the Mandatory Borough Act of 1961

didn't specified which areas would beconme boroughs and that
there isn't a current mandate.

SENATOR W LKEN out | i ned borough hi story.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS restated his question: Is there a borough
act in effect now?

SENATOR W LKEN said there was not; the Mandatory Borough Act was
a single piece of |egislation.

There were no further questions.
CHAI R WVAGONER asked for the pleasure of the commttee.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS made a notion to nove SCR 12 from conmmittee
with individual recomendati ons.

SENATOR LI NCOLN obj ect ed.
CHAIR WAGONER asked for a roll call. Senator Gary Stevens and

Chair Wagoner voted yea and Senators Lincoln and Elton voted
nay. The bill failed to nove fromcomrttee.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -10- May 9, 2003



#

CHAI R WVAGONER adj ourned the neeting at 3:15 pm

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -11- May 9, 2003



